#### **ENJOY SPORTS! PLAY LIFE!**

# Participation Terms and Conditions



ASIA-PACIFIC MASTERS GAMES 2023 JEONBUK KOREA

### **Table of Contents**

1.	Name	1
2.	Host / Organisers / Supporters	1
3.	Basic Philosophy of the Games	2
4.	Games Schedule ·····	3
5.	Introduction to the Sports Program	3
6.	Participation Eligibility	4
	Entry Procedure ·····	
8.	Entry Period ·····	5
9.	Entry Fee ·····	6
10.	Payment / Cancellation / Refund Policies	7
11.	Rights Assigned to Participants	9
12.	Insurance need to be subscribed by Participants ····	11
13.	Accreditation ·····	11
	Sport Check-in ·····	14
15.	Doping Control ·····	14
16.	Personal Information Policies	15
17.	Information and Notification to Participants	15
	Accommodation / Restaurants / Transportation	16
19.	Precautions	16
20.	Ownership of Rights ·····	17
	Disclaimer of the Organisers	18
22.	Prohibited Matters ·····	20
23.	Amendment of Participation Terms and Conditions	21
24.	Governing Laws & Jurisdiction	21

## Asia-Pacific Masters Games 2023 Jeonbuk Korea 「Participation Terms and Conditions」

- The Participation Terms and Conditions of the Asia-Pacific Masters Games 2023 Jeonbuk Korea (hereinafter referred to as the "Organizing Committee") operated by the Organizing Committee for Asia-Pacific Masters Games 2023 Jeonbuk Korea. It prescribes all matters related to participation, such as rights and obligations, and aims to successfully host the Masters Games.
- The Organizing Committee may revise the Participation Terms and Conditions depending on the time and circumstances of Masters Games and any revised content will be announced immediately on the official website of the Masters Games.
- All participants (Athletes, Non-Playing Officials and Supporters) shall abide by the 「Participation Terms and Conditions」, whenever they use the services. It will be considered that any participant agrees with the 「Participation Terms and Conditions」 amendment(s) when he/she uses the services after the amendment(s).

#### 1. Name

Asia-Pacific Masters Games 2023 Jeonbuk Korea

#### 2. Host / Organisers / Supporters

A. Host: International Masters Games Association (IMGA)

B. Organisers : Organizing Committee for Asia-Pacific Masters Games 2023 Jeonbuk Korea, Jeollabuk-do Provincial government, Jeonbuk Sports Council

- C. Supporters: Ministry of Culture, Sports and Tourism, Korea Sports Promotion Foundation, Korean Sport & Olympic Committee, Korea Tourism Organization.
  - Sponsors will be announced at a later date on the official website (www.apmg2023.kr).

#### 3. Basic Philosophy of the Games

The Asia-Pacific Masters Games is held every 4 year by the International Masters Games Association (IMGA). As the first international sports-for-all event in Korea, anyone who is 30 years old or older (varies by sports event), retired athletes, as well as any sport enthusiasts can participate in the event.

- A. With the idea that participation itself is meaningful, the participants can find the value of oneself as a sport enthusiast and as a competitor who is "Competing for Themselves", and Masters Games is to offer a "Joyful Event for All Participants" that values the competition by overcoming their own personal challenges, rather than focusing on the competition rankings or results against each other.
- B. The Masters Games goes beyond national and territorial boundaries that promotes athletes in the global village to share cultural experiences, and share the "Global Friendship Event", in which athletes and their families and friends come together.
- C. The Masters Games pursues the concept of a 'Low-cost, High-efficient and Economical Event" that maximizes the utilization of existing facilities without building new facilities, and it's an 'Eco-friendly Green Event" that meets the era of ecological society that emphasizes in solving the infectious diseases and environmental issues.

#### 4. Games Schedule

- A. Dates: Friday, May 12 Saturday, May 20, 2023 (9 days)
- B. Venues: In Jeollabuk-do (14 cities and counties)
- C. Opening Ceremony: Saturday, May 13, 2023 / Jeonju World
  Cup Stadium
- D. Closing Ceremony: Saturday, May 20, 2023 / Jeolla Gamyeong
  - For the details on the Opening and Closing Ceremony, please visit the official website.

#### 5. Introduction to the Sports Program

- A. Sports: 26
  - (1) Official Sports Event (24)
    - Archery, Athletics, Badminton, Baseball, Basketball, Bowling,
       Cycling, Golf, Hockey, Judo, Roller sports, Sailing, Shooting,
       Football, Softball, Squash, Swimming, Table tennis,
       Taekwondo, Tennis, Triathlon, Volleyball, Weightlifting, Wushu.
  - (2) Demonstration Sports Event (2): Gateball, Park golf
- B. Participants: 10,000
- C. Venues: 42 Venues in 14 City and County
- D. Sports Program Schedule & Venue
- E. Competition Schedule: For detailed information, please check the 「Sports Program Guidelines」 and the contents are subject to change depending on circumstances.

#### F. General Sports Program Guidelines

- (1) Athletes shall check the sports program guidelines and information in the guidelines for each sports event.
- (2) Athletes may act as managers or coaches (Non-Playing Officials), but must register themselves as athletes.

(3) No one can gain access in the competition area where the athletes is competiting for each event except Athletes and Non-Playing Officials.

#### 6. Participation Eligibility

- A. Those who want to participate in the Masters Games shall complete the entry, and payment of entry fee (including additional entry fees) in accordance with "Section 7. Participant Entry" and "Section 9. Entry Fee".
- B. If the participant's supporter is a minor, he/she can participate only with the consent of his/her legal representative, including his/her parental authority, and it is considered as a confirmation of consent (check) in the entry system.
- C. The "Athletes" are those who are 30 years of age or older can participate in sports events, and some events have different age requirement, so please check the Sports Program Guidelines for age requirements and calculation standards for each event.
- D. The "Non-Playing Officials" are those who are not athletes but joining the Masters Games as directors, managers or coaches and are engaged in sports events.
- E. The "Supporters" do not participate in the sports events as athletes, but supports athletes, energizes the games, tours and enjoys the cultural experiences in Jeollabuk-do and Korea. The Supporters have the same rights as Athletes and Non-Playing Officials (except access to sports competition area for athletes). The age requirements for supporters is 12 years of age or older (born before Dec. 31, 2011).

#### 7. Entry Procedure

- A. For entry, go to the official website, agree to the 'Terms and Conditions on the Use of Entry System and submit your entry.
- B. Individual athletes can participate in up to 5 sports events (disciplines) in a maximum of 3 sports program. Athletes entry per sport is first come first serve and when the maximum capacity (quota) per event is reached.
- C. The quota for the sports events can be increased and additional entries can be allowed after the closure of entry. The additional entries are put on a waiting list. For more details on additional entries, please visit the official website.
- D. Even after closing the entry, the applicants can add or change the sports event in which they will participate on the entry system until the entry deadline.
- E. Entry must be registered individually, but in the case of a team event, the representative can register for entry as a group (team) and detailed information of the individual athletes must be registered and the entry fee will be the same way as the individual entry.
- F. Entry can be rejected or cancelled based on the discretion of the organizer, if any significant damage is expected, including criminal acts, for safety concerns, and in the case of doping violations or due to any other causes that may defame the image of the Masters Games.
- G. For more details, please check the Guidelines on the Use of Entry System.

#### 8. Entry Period

- A. Entry starts from 9 AM on Wednesday, Jan. 12, 2022.
- B. Deadline for Athletes, Non-Playing Officials and Supporters is Tuesday, at 24:00 on Jan. 31, 2023. It may be extended depending on the sport.
- C. Starting and closing date are based on Korean Standard Time (GMT+9).

#### 9. Entry Fee

- A. Entry fee applies to the fixed exchange rate of the Korean Won (KRW) (including taxes and charges). The entry fee is for one athlete, regardless of individual or team events.
- B. Payment in foreign currencies except Korean Won (KRW) will be converted at the exchange rate at the time of payment.
- C. Entry fee for the Masters Games (basic) is specified below.

Category of Participants	Domestic (Korean / Foreigner)	International
Athletes	120,000 KRW (~87 Euro)	250,000 KRW (~182 Euro)
Non-Playing Officials/Supporters	60,000 KRW (~43 Euro)	120,000 KRW (~87 Euro)

- ※ Foreign residents of Korean nationality and domestic residents of foreign nationality (limited to Alien accreditation card holders) are classified as "Korean" (domestic), In case of the change of residence after entry, status is determined on the basis of the closing date of the entry. For more details, please contact us on the official website of the Masters Games (via email).
- D. Extra fees may be required depending on the sports event. Extra fees are specified below.

Sport (Sports event)	Payment Category	Extra Fee	Reasons for Extra Payment
Golf (Golf)	Domestic / International	180,000 KRW (~131 Euro)	Golf course and cart fees (3 days per person)
Shooting (Clay / Rifle)	International	65,000 KRW (~47 Euro)	Customs clearance charge for firearms

E. Optional participation is possible if there is a reception for each event. For more details, please check the Sports Program Guidelines for each event.

- F. Entry fee must be paid within 10 days after submitting the entry application. After that, it will be automatically canceled.
- G. Participants who pays the entry fee before July 11, 2022 will receive a 10% discount on the entry fee (basic entry fee).

#### 10. Payment / Cancellation / Refund Policies

- A. The entry fee can be paid by Korea or Overseas credit card (including easy payment services) or by a virtual account transfer.
  - (1) Credit Cards (17 Credit Card companies)

Division General (11 Credit Cards)		Easy Payment (6 Credit Cards)
Korea	BC, Hana, Hyundai, Kookmin(KB), Lotte, NongHyup(NH), Samsung, Shinhan Credit Cards	Naver Pay, Kakao Pay, Payco
Overseas	VISA, MASTER, JCB	Union Pay(China), Ali, WeChat

- (2) Virtual account transfer (only for domestic, 13 financial institutions)
  - Busan, Daegu, Hana, Industrial Bank of Korea(IBK), Kwangju,
     K-Bank, Kookmin(KB), Korea Exchange Bank, KoreaPost Bank,
     NongHyup(NH), Shinhan, Standard Chartered Bank(SCB), Woori.
- B. A cancellation due to personal reasons is accepted only when the process is completed on the entry system within the cancellation period. Entry fee will be refunded after deducting the cancellation fee. The deadline for a cancellation is specified below.

Category of Participants	Partial Refund (except cancellation fee 5% of the entry fee)	Non-refundable	Remarks
Athletes  Non-Playing  Officials  Supporters	Before 24:00 on Tuesday, Jan. 31, 2023.	After Wednesday, Feb. 1, 2023.	On the Basis of Korean Standard Time (GMT+9)

- C. If the cancellation is made due to force majeure<sup>1)</sup> or due to the responsible reason of the organizer<sup>2)</sup> after **"Entry"**, the full amount will be refunded(including cancellation fee)
- D. The entry fee will be fully refunded in case of the death of a participant, or if a participant proves that he/she can't participate in the Masters Games due to any inevitable reasons<sup>3</sup>).
- E. After the "Accreditation", if there are force majeure, the participant's absence from the games, and some of the event(s) have been canceled, but if the participation in the sports event is still possible, no refund is given and no compensation is held.
- F. The entry fee will not be refunded and the participation is cancelled in case of the false entry of personal information, including name, gender, or health status of a participant (including unintentional mistakes), or the transfer of the participation rights to a third party.

Including safety reasons caused by natural disasters, social accidents/incidents, or the infectious diseases

<sup>2)</sup> Including the postponement or cancellation of events, impossibilities to host an event or the change of sports.

<sup>3)</sup> Evidentiary documents need to be submitted, including death certificate, medical certificate, or hospitalization certificate and the decision on whether to refund or not is notified by the Organizing Committee.

- G. If Entry fee is paid by credit card, in principle, cancellation and refund will be processed to the credit card.
- X Deposit of refund varies on credit card companies, which will be completed within 5 days in Korea and 10 days overseas.
- H. Payment using a virtual account for domestic participants will be refunded within 5 days to the bank accounts of participants' financial institutions.
- I. After the cancellation deadline for payment using credit cards or from a virtual account, the Organizing Committee will send a refund to the participant's financial institution bank account within 20 days, after deducting transaction fee. However, the transaction fee will not be deducted for the cases in pertaining to Clause C, above.
- J. The cancellation deadline for each entry fee payment method is as specified below follows.

	Credit		Credit Cards from Overseas		
Division	Cards in Korea	Virtual Account	Ali/WeChat	UNION PAY(China)	VISA·MASTER JCB
Cancellation Deadline (from the date of payment)	1 year	180 days	1 year	180 days	90 days

#### 11. Rights Assigned to Participants

- A. The rights of participants are specified below:
  - (1) Participation rights for an event: The participation rights for an event is only for the "Athletes". Medals are presented depending on the achievement in the event.
  - (2) Involvement rights for an event: The involvement rights for an event is only for the "Non-Playing Officials". It's the right to be involved in an event. For more details including the scope and method of involvement, please check the Sports Program Guidelines for each sport.

- (3) Participation rights for the Opening/Closing Ceremony: The participation rights for the Opening/Closing Ceremony allow entry into a specific zone for the Opening/Closing Ceremony on a preferential basis. Admission to the Opening/Closing Ceremony, venues require an Accreditation Card ("ACR card"), which is issued at the time of accreditation for Masters Games. In case of each participant, an individual can bring up to 4 Supporters, who are 12 years or younger. In that case, participants need to register for the Supporters at the time of entry application for the Games.
- (4) A variety of service vouchers: Only participants can use and experience a variety of programs using vouchers.
- (5) Participants' Kit
  - (A) Backpack
  - (B) T-shirt × Refer to the table below for T-shirt sizes.
  - (C) Tumbler × Sports tumbler to reduce usages of plastic.
  - (D) Jeonbuk Tour Pass (for sightseeing)
- X The items in the kit above are subject to change. For more details, please check the "Participants' Kit" on the official website. The items in the kit are not replaceable except for damage or defect.

X T-shirt Size Chart

Sizes	Height	Chest	Waist
xs	157-163cm	81-87cm	67-73cm
s	162-168cm	85-91cm	71-77cm
М	167_173cm	89-95cm	75-81cm
L	172-178cm	93-99cm	<b>79-85</b> cm
XL	177-183cm	97-103cm	83-85cm
2XL	182-188cm	101-107cm	83-89cm
3XL	187-193cm	105-111cm	87-93cm

#### 12. Insurance need to be subscribed by Participants

- A. The Organizing Committee will take on accident and health insurance for any accidents of participants (athletes, non-playing officials and supporters) only within the venues.
  - X The accident and health insurance above does not cover all kinds of risks during the competition, travel, viewing performances, shopping, etc and you are solely responsible.
- B. The participants shall take on the necessary insurances (including accident, travel and medical insurances, etc) costs against diseases or accidents that may occur during the event period as the participant.

#### 13. Accreditation

- A. All participants related to the Masters Games, including athletes, non-playing officials, and supporters must register for accreditation (AD card).
- B. Overseas participants must only use the main Accreditation Center (Jeonju World Cup Stadium), and for domestic participants AD card will be sent out in advance by mail (delivery) before the start of the competition to provide convenience to domestic participants.

- C. Exclusively for overseas participants can register from May 10 (Wed) to May 20 (Sat) 2023 at the Main Accreditation Center
- D. If you need to reissue your AD card due to the loss or damange of your AD card, you can visit the secondary (AUX) registration center installed for each sport venues from May 12, 2023, Friday to May 20, 2023, Saturday. 2023.

No.	City, County	Sport	Accreditation Center	Address	Operating Hours	Note
1	Jeonju	-	Jeonju World Cup Stadium	1055, Girindae-ro, Deokjin-gu	5. 10. ~ 20. (09:00~18:00) *5. 10. ~ 12. (24 hrs)	MAIN
2	Jeonju	Cycling (Track)	Jeonju Velodrome	22-14, Baengmasan-gil, Wansan-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
3	Jeonju	Swimming	Wansan Swimming Pool	366-7, Ssukgogae-ro, Wansan-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
4	Jeonju	Squash	Jeonbuk Sports Center	62, Deulsapyeong-ro, Deokjin-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
5	Jeonju	Squash	Vision College of Jeonju Squash Court	235, Cheonjam-ro, Wansan-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
6	Jeonju	Basketball	Jeonju Gymnasium	308, Gwonsamdeuk-ro, Deokjin-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
7	Jeonju	Basketball	Jeonju High School	2, Gwonsamdeuk-ro, Wansan-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
8	Jeonju	Basketball	Vision College of Jeonju Gymnasium	235, Cheonjam-ro, Wansan-gu, Jeonju-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
9	Jeonju	Volleyball	Jeonju Geunyeong Girls HS Gymnasium	11, Yeonggyeong 1-gil, Wansan-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
10	Jeonju	Bowling	Chunil Bowling Alley	94, Garinae-ro, Deokjin-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
11	Jeonju	Triathlon (Duathlon)	Whole area of Jeonju (Jeonju Šports Complex)	451, Girin-daero, Deokjin-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
12	Jeonju	Wushu	Hwasan Gymnasium	310, Baekje-daero, Wansan-gu	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
13	Gunsan	Golf	Gunsan Country Club	1685-53, Namgunsan-ro, Okseo-myeon	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
14	Gunsan	Soccer, Baseball, Table tennis.	Wolmyeong Stadium	281, Beonyeong-ro, Gunsan-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
15	lksan	Athletics (Track/Field, marathon), Badminton, Softball, Baseball	Iksan Sports Complex	1397, Muwang-ro, Iksan-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX

	City		Accreditation		Operating	
No.	City, County	Sport	Center	Address	Operating Hours	Note
16	Iksan	Triathlon (main)	Whole Area of Unpo-myeon (Gomgaenaru Park)	25, Gangbyeon-ro, Ungpo-myeon, Iksan-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
17	lksan	Volleyball	Namseong HS Gymnasium	41, Dongseo-ro 35-gil, Iksan-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
18	lksan	Bowling	Nambu Top Bowling Alley	66, Mokcheon-ro 6-gil, Iksan-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
19	lksan	Bowling	Kims Rock Bowling Alley	313, Gobong-ro, Iksan-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
20	lksan	Soccer	Geumma Stadium	818-19, Hwanggeum-ro, Geumma-myeon, Iksan-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
21	Jeongeup	Soccer	Taein Football Stadium	194-11 Taechang-ri, Taein-myeon, Jeongeup-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
22	Jeongeup	Soccer	Sintaein Football Stadium	1060 Jeongyeong-ro, Jeongu-myeon, Jeongeup-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
23	Namwon	Roller sport	Inline Roller Stadium	341, Chungjeong-ro, Namwon-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
24	Gimje	Soccer	Civic Stadium	220 Dojak-ro, Gimje-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
25	Gimje	Hockey (field)	International Hockey Field	220 Dojak-ro, Gimje-si	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
26	Wanju	Volleyball	Woosuk University Gymnasium	443, Samrye-ro, Samrye-eup, Wanju-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
27	Wanju	Park golf	Wanju Saeng-gang-gol Park Golf Course	783, Nakpyeong-ri, Bongdong-eup, Wanju-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
28	Jinan	Cycling (Road)	Whole area of Jinan (Maisan Tourist Complex Parking Lot) Whole area of	127, Maisan-ro, Jinan-eup, Jinan-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
		, , , ,	Jinan (Unsan intersection area)	276-8, Unsan-ri, Jinan-eup, Jinan-gun		
29	Jinan	Weight- lifting	Culture and Art Stadium	1054-38, Jinmu-ro, Jinan-eup, Jinan-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
30	Muju	Taekwondo	Taekwondowon T1 Stadium	1482, Museol-ro, Seolcheon-myeon, Muju-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
31	Muju	Cycling (MTB)	Muju MTB Track (National Sports Center)	38, Choebuk-ro, Muju-eup, Muju-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
32	Jangsu	Gateball	Gaya Stadium	250, Jangcheon-ro, Jangsu-eup, Jangsu-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
33	lmsil	Shooting	Jeollabuk-do Shooting Range	168-46, Cheongun-ro, Cheongung-myeon, Imsil-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
34	lmsil	Archery	Jeonbuk International Archery Field	1, Uigyeon-ro, Osu-myeon, Imsil-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
35	Sunchang	Tennis	Sunchang Public Stadium Tennis Court	180, Jangnyu-ro, Sunchang-eup, Sunchang-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
36	Gochang	Judo	County Gymnasium	36, Undongjang-gil, Gochang-eup, Gochang-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
37	Buan	Sailing	Byeonsan Yachting Center	788-17, Gyeokpo-ri, Byeonsan-myeon, Buan-gun	5. 12.~20. (09:00~18:00)	AUX
				the state of the s		

Operating hours are flexible depending on the competition schedule and application status.

E. To register, you must bring an application receipt or a accepted document for identification that can be used to verify your identity, and receive an AD card and participant kit after confirming your identity.

Division		Accepted Document for Identification
Koreans	Koreans living in Korea	Requires one document out of Resident Registration Card, Driver's license or Passport
Koreans	Koreans living overseas	Requires one document out of Resident Registration Card, Driver's license or Passport
Faraignaga	Foreigners living in Korea	Requires one document out of Alien Registration Card (ARC) or Passport
Foreigners	Foreigners living overseas	Passport
General		For the minors, a copy of Resident Registration Card, Family Relations Certificate or any other documents with a photo and a date of birth.

- If nationality or residence has changed after the entry,
   personal information submitted at the time of entry is needed.
- F. Accreditation is available only during the business operating hours of at each accreditation center.
- G. Accreditation is not accepted without identifiable documents or by a third party.
- H. The Organizing Committee may request the AD Card in some cases. Thus, participants shall bring their AD Cards at all times until the end of the Masters Games.
  - I. For teams, every team member shall complete the Accreditation process for the Masters Games.

#### 14. Sport Check-in

A. Athletes, Non-Playing Officials (except Supporters) shall

- complete the Sport Check-in before participating or engaging the event venue.
- B. After "Accreditation", participants need to complete the "Sport Check-in" at the venue for each event. Those who participate in several events need to check-in for each event. For more details, please check the "Sports Program Guidelines..."

#### 15. Doping Control

- A. Asia-Pacific Masters Games 2023 Jeonbuk Korea adopts the doping policy in line with the 「World Anti-Doping Code」 and 「IMGA Anti-Doping Rules」 as the effort of protecting clean sports and athletes and for delivering a wide range of sport values to the next generation in cooperation with Korea Anti-Doping Agency.
- B. Anti-doping activities including doping tests and anti-doping education will be implemented in accordance with the 「IMGA Anti-Doping Rules」.
- C. Submission of the entry form for participation is considered as an agreement that the participants will comply with all kinds of anti-doping control procedures in accordance with the 「IMGA Anti-Doping Rules」. For more details, please check the 「IMGA Anti-Doping Rules」.

#### 16. Personal Information Policies

- A. The personal information of participants shall be used in accordance with relevant rules and regulations including <code>「IMGA Privacy Policy」</code>, <code>「Act on Promotion of Information and Communication Network Utilization and Information Protection, Etc.」</code>, and <code>「Personal Information Protection Act」</code> and In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the relevant documents, the IMGA Privacy Policy shall prevail.
- B. The host and Organizing Committee can collect and use

personal information for improving the services for participants, and the notification of information for participants in the Masters Games, event operations, achievements, and any other information related to the Masters Games (including tourism, transportation and accommodation).

#### 17. Information and Notification to Participants

- A. Information and notices to participants will be sent to the email registered at the time of entry and on the official website in accordance with 「Terms and Conditions on the Use of Entry System」, or can be notified using any other methods which the Organizing Committee admits as the proper means.
- B. Information and notices by email are considered to be effective at the time when the server used by the participant receives the email.
- C. Information and notices published on the official website of the Masters Games are considered to be effective when a member logs on the website and the relevant notice screen is opened.

#### 18. Accommodation / Restaurants / Transportation

- A. Information on accommodation and restaurant is posted on the official website of the Masters Games.
- B. For more details on the transportation, including arrival and departure services for participants, shuttle bus operations, and parking lots at the venues, please check on the official website of the Masters Games.

#### 19. Precautions

A. The Organizing Committee holds the Masters Games in accordance with the Participation Terms and Conditions for the Masters Games, 「Sports Program Guidelines」, 「Terms

- and Conditions on the Use of Entry System\_ and 「World Anti-Doping CodeCode」 and 「IMGA Anti-Doping Rules」.
- B. The Organizing Committee may not allow the participants from participating in any events or proceed with the competition for reasons due to safety control, etc. and the participants shall comply with the instructions of the Organizing Committee.
- C. It is considered that for minors of 12 years or older (born before Dec. 31, 2011), their legal representatives, including the person with parental rights, agree with the participation of minors at the time when the 'Entry Form for Participation' is submitted.
- D. Participants in the Masters Games agree to receive personal identification checks and other necessary security checks (including inspection of belongings) at the time of entry and exit of the venues. Regardless of the circumstances, any matters related to the entry and exit from each event venue shall be determined by the Organizing Committee, as the entity responsible for the operation of the Masters Games.
- E. For those who are participating in several sport events, the participants shall apply for the events after checking the schedule to prevent overlapping schedules or to secure enough transit time (including traveling time between venues).
- F. If you modify the sports (disciplines) to participate in, you must register the change in the registration system by 2023. 1. 31. (Tue) (Korea Standard Time).
- G. If you modify the opening and closing ceremony, the venue and flight schedule (date of entry, airport of departure, flight name of departure, etc.)prepared when applying for the

competition, you must modify it the registration system by January 31, 2023 (Tuesday) (Korea Standard Time).

#### 20. Ownership of Rights

- A. The host has the exclusive right to use the property value of a participant's portrait to a certain extent.
- B. Participants cannot raise any objection against the following acts by the host, Organizing Committee or enterprises, organizations, media agencies, or individuals admitted by the Organizing Committee:
  - photographing or filming participants' portraits in and around the event venues during the Masters Games;
  - (2) using participants' portraits photographed or filmed as specified in Clause (1) above for any kinds of media whether for profits or nonprofits, including publishing, reporting, advertising, or promoting in any kinds of media;
  - (3) transferring the photographed or filmed portraits of participants as specified in the Clause (1) above with or without payment.
- C. The participants cannot claim any compensation for the usage of their portraits, regardless of the purposes of the usage.

#### 21. Disclaimer of the Organisers

- A. The Organizing Committee shall safely carry out the Masters Games and fulfill its fiduciary duty of operating the Masters Games and shall not be liable for any legal responsibilities, losses or damages by accident if the host has no intentional or significant negligence.
- B. False information including name, age, gender, eligibility, or achievements (including unintentional errors), participation of a

third party instead of the applicant (illegal participation), and the transfer of rights (including transfer of Accreditation cards) are not allowed. If any of acts above are found or participants do not follow reasonable instruction or decisions by the Organizing Committee, the relevant participants shall comply with all kinds of instructions or decisions by the Organizing Committee including the cancellation of participation or awards, and the Organizing Committee shall not refund the entry fees, nor be liable for any compensation.

- C. Flight tickets, accommodations, and insurance required for participation in the Masters Games, medical expenses incurred by the participation in the Masters Games, or other costs shall be covered solely by the participants.
- D. The offers from a third party, which is a partner of the Masters Games, shall be selected and used by the participants at their own discretion. The Organizing Committee shall not be liable for any damages or losses caused by the use of such offers or the offers themselves.
- E. The Organizing Committee shall not be liable for the delay of entry for the Games caused by poor internet connections or devices, or lateness caused by public transportation or road conditions on the day when an event is held.
- F. The Organizing Committee shall not refund entry fees or be liable for any compensation in case that the Masters Games is suspended for any reasons not attributable to the host (including earthquakes, storms or flooding disaster, heavy snow, infectious diseases, war, riot, terror, accident, incident, labor dispute, or civil suit).
- G. The Organizing Committee shall not be liable for any physical injuries, diseases, losses, or other accidents occurring under proper management, including the physical damages caused

by contact during an event which is conducted in ordinary circumstances, unless there is any intentional or significant mistake. Furthermore, the Organizing Committee will perform first-aid for accidents occurring during an event, but shall not have any liabilities related to accidents.

- H. The Organizing Committee will get accident insurance, but the insurance is applied only for the 'injuries of athletes and relevant officials occurring inside the event venue, not for any other risks during the Masters Games.
- I. The Organizing Committee has the right to change the schedule or venue of an event or suspend, integrate, or adjust sports (including the events or age requirements) if required for the operation of the Masters Games or in case of any other reasonable cause. The Organizing Committee shall not be liable for any damages or losses (including travel or accommodation expenses) which may be caused by such changes.
- J. The Organizing Committee will endeavor to provide accurate information related to the Masters Games (including information by email related to the Masters Games) and will immediately correct errors if any occur.
- K. Any damages by infringing the Participation Terms and Conditions or other relevant rules will be the responsibility of the participant. The Organizing Committee shall not be liable from such damages.
- L. The transactions, contact, troubles, or disputes between participants, or between a participant and a third party related to the Masters Games shall be the responsibility of the participants.

#### 22. Prohibited Matters

The participants shall must not do any of the following while participating in the Masters Games:

A. any acts infringing on a variety of laws, cautions in using the website, or Participation Terms and Conditions;

- B. any acts that violate various laws, cautions in website use, or this agreement;
- C. any acts of fraud, intimidation, damage or displeasure to other participants or third parties;
- D. any acts which may have negative influence on the mind any body of teenagers, or which harm traditional customs;
- E. any acts infringing upon property rights, intellectual property rights, portrait rights, privacy, honors, or other rights or profits of other participants or third parties;
- F. any acts spreading information, including false or wrong content;
- G. any acts spreading information, including excessively violent or cruel expression;
- H. any acts spreading information, including harmful programs including computer viruses;
- any acts, inducing an excessive overload to service networks or systems, including intentional and repetitive posting of the same content;
- J. any authorized access to networks or systems, or interpretation acts, including reverse engineering of the system, including software from the Organizing Committee;
- K. any acts of advertising, promoting, recommending, or selling without prior approval; and
- L. any sexual harassment and racism before, during and after the competition period
- M. any other acts, which are considered to be inappropriate by the Organizing Committee.

#### 23. Amendment of Participation Terms and Conditions

- A. The host and Organizing Committee has the right to amend any content of these Participation Terms and Conditions.
- B. Change of any content in these Participation Terms and

Conditions shall be effective from the date when the contents and effectuation date of change are announced on the official website of the Masters Games.

C. The details of changes, which may have significant impact on the rights of participants, shall be notified to participants by email or announced on the official website of the Masters Games in advance.

#### 24. Governing Laws and Jurisdiction

The Asia-Pacific Masters Games 2023 Jeonbuk Korea is governed and interpreted by the Laws of the Republic of Korea. Any disputes arising out of or relating to the Masters Games shall be resolved in the competent courts in accordance with the Civil Procedure Act of Korea.

#### Addenda

November 2021 Enactment

## 「Addenda of Participation Terms and Conditions for the Masters Games(Attachment)」

- 1. Terms and Condition on the Use of the Entry System
- 2. Sports Program Guidelines
- 3. World Anti-Doping Code & IMGA Anti-Doping Rules
- 4. IMGA Privacy Policies
- 5. Act on Promotion of Information and Communications Network Utilization and Information Protection, etc.
- 6. Personal Information Protection Act

#### **ENJOY SPORTS! PLAY LIFE!**

### **Achi & Taechi**



# ASIA-PACIFIC MASTERS GAMES 2023 JEONBUK KOREA